
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 
Regular Meeting December 10, 2014 
City Hall Wednesday 
East Side of Monte Verde Street Tour – 1:30 p.m. 
Between Ocean & Seventh Avenues Meeting – 4:00 p.m. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
 Commissioners: Jan Reimers, Chair  
  Michael LePage, Vice-Chair  
  Keith Paterson 
  Don Goodhue  
  Ian Martin 
 
B. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
 Shortly after 1:30 p.m., the Commission will leave the Council Chambers for an on-site
 Tour of Inspection of all properties listed on this agenda (including those on the 
 Consent Agenda).  The Tour may also include projects previously approved by the 
 City and not on this agenda.  Prior to the beginning of the Tour of Inspection, the 
 Commission may eliminate one or more on-site visits.  The public is welcome to follow 
 the Commission on its tour of the determined sites.  The Commission will return to the 
 Council Chambers at 4:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible. 
 
C. ROLL CALL 
 
D. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
E. ANNOUNCEMENTS/EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
F. APPEARANCES 
 
 Anyone wishing to address the Commission on matters not on the agenda, but within 
 the jurisdiction of the Commission, may do so now.  Please state the matter on which 
 you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the Commission agenda will not receive 
 action at this meeting but may be referred to staff for a future meeting.  Presentations 
 will be limited to three minutes, or as otherwise established by the Commission Chair.  
 Persons are not required to give their name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to 
 state their name in order that the Secretary may identify them. 
  

Planning Commission Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2014 

1 
1



G. CONSENT AGENDA 

Items placed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and are acted upon by 
the Commission in one motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the 
Commission action unless a member of the Commission, staff, or public requests specific 
items be discussed and removed from the Consent Agenda.  It is understood that the staff 
recommends approval of all consent items.  Each item on the Consent Agenda approved 
by the Commission shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as 
recommended. 

1. Consideration of draft minutes from October 8, 2014 Regular Meeting
2. Consideration of draft minutes from November 12, 2014 Regular Meeting

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

If you challenge the nature of the proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising 
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this 
notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission at, or prior to, 
the public hearing. 

1. MP 14-03 (Carmel-by-the-Sea)
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea
Citywide

Consideration of Municipal Project (MP 14-03): 
Design Options and Locations for Cigarette 
Receptacles 

2. MP 12-01 (Carmel-by-the-Sea) 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
West side of Scenic Road at the 
intersection of Santa Lucia 
APN: 010-294-001

Update on Scenic Road Restroom Project (MP 12-
01) and the associated landscape plan

3. DS 14-90 (Shannon)
Carl and Dianne Shannon
Monte Verde 3 NW of 4th Ave
Blk: II, Lots: North ½ of Lot 9 & South
½ of 11
APN: 010-223-032

Consideration of Final Design Study (DS 14-90) and 
associated Coastal Development Permit application 
for the construction of a new residence located in the 
Single-Family Residential (R-1) and Archaeological 
Significance Overlay (AS) Zoning Districts    

4. DS 14-117 (Pedersen)
Ole M. Pedersen
Torres 4 SE of 8th Ave
Blk: 100, Lot: 10
APN: 010-053-007

Consideration of Design Study (DS 14-117) for the 
replacement of a wood-shake roof with composition 
shingles on a residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) District 

5. DR 14-33 (Levett)
Dennis Levett
SE Corner of Ocean and Mission

Consideration of a Design Study (DR 14-33) for the 
replacement of a composition roof with composition 
shingles on a commercial building located in the 

Planning Commission Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2014 

2 
2



      Blk: 58, Lots: 2 & 4 
            APN:  010-098-015 

Service Commercial District  

  
   6.   DS 14-114 (OSBT) 
         Alan Lehman 
         NE Corner of Forest and 7th 
         Block 2, Lot 5;  
         APN: 009-201-013 

Consideration of Concept Design Study (DS 14-114) 
and associated Coastal Development Permit 
application for the substantial alteration of an 
existing residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) Zoning District    

  
   7.   DS 14-115 (Churchward) 

Santa Fe Street 5 SW of 5th Ave        
Blk: 60, Lot: 9;  
APN: 010-092-004 

 

Consideration of Concept Design Study (DS 14-115) 
and associated Coastal Development Permit 
application for the substantial alteration of an 
existing residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) Zoning District    

  
8.   DS 14-107 (Hoffman) 
      San Antonio 3 NW of 13th 
      Blk: A5, Lots: South portion of 4  
      APN: 010-292-006 
 

Consideration of Concept Design Study (DS 14-107) 
and associated Coastal Development Permit 
application for the construction of a new residence 
located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1), Park 
Overlay (P), and Beach and Riparian (BR) Overlay 
Zoning Districts 

  
I. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Update from the Director 
2. Goals and Departmental Work-Plan for 2015  
3. Review and possible amendment to the Planning Commission Rules of Procedure 

 
J. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  

1. Report from Median Lighting Subcommittee (Reminder: on Dec. 8, 2014 Workshop) 
2. Report from Other Sub-Committees 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be: 
 

Wednesday, January 14, 2015, at 4:00 p.m.  
 

The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  
Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall is an accessible facility.  The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
telecommunications device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired (T.D.D.) Number is 1-800-735-
2929. 
 
The City Council Chambers is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to 
come to the podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request of the 

Planning Commission Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2014 

3 
3



Administrative Coordinator.  If you need assistance, please advise the Planning 
Commission Secretary what item you would like to comment on and the microphone will 
be brought to you. 

 
NO AGENDA ITEM WILL BE CONSIDERED AFTER 8:00 P.M. UNLESS 
AUTHORIZED BY A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION.  ANY 
AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED AT THE MEETING WILL BE CONTINUED 
TO A FUTURE DATE DETERMINED BY THE COMMISSION. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding 
any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning & 
Building Department located in City Hall, east side of Monte Verde between Ocean & 7th 
Avenues, during normal business hours. 

 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Robert A. Mullane, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director, for the City of Carmel-
by-the-Sea, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
California, that the foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin 
board, posted at the Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln Avenues and the Carmel 
Post Office and distributed to members of the media on December 4, 2014. 
 
Dated this 4th day of December 2014 at the hour of 4:15 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Robert A. Mullane, AICP 
Community Planning and Building Director 

      
 
 

Planning Commission Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2014 

4 
4



ITEM G1. MINUTES FROM 10/8/14 PLANNING 
COMMISSION MEETING 

THIS ITEM WILL BE PROVIDED SEPARATELY 

5



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
PLANNING COMMISSION – DRAFT MINUTES 

 November 12, 2014  
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL FOR TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
 PRESENT: Commissioners:  LePage, Paterson, Martin, Goodhue, and Reimers 
 
 ABSENT: Commissioners: None 
  
 STAFF PRESENT: Rob Mullane, AICP, Community Planning & Building Director 

 Marc Wiener, Senior Planner 
 Christy Sabdo, Contract Planner 
 Roxanne Ellis, Planning Commission Secretary 
  

B. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 

The Commission convened at 2:08 p.m. and then toured the following sites:  
 

 
1. DS 14-96 (Domicile Capital); 9th Ave. 2 NE of Monte Verde, Block: 94; Lot: W ½ of 

17 & 19 
2. DS 14-64 (Webster); Camino Real 2 NW of 11th Ave. Block: Q; Lot: 17 
3. DR 14-30/UP14-18 (Carmel Coffee and Cocoa Bar); SE Corner of Ocean and Mission  

Block: 78; Lots: All 
4. DS 14-27 (Piccadilly Park); Dolores 2 SW of Ocean Ave. Block: 75; Lot: 11 
5. DS 14-72 (Levett); Monte Verde 3 NE of 4th Ave. Block: 32; Lots: 16 (two 

Commissioners) 
 
C. ROLL CALL  
 

Chairman Reimers called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m.  
 

D. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Members of the audience joined Commission Members in the pledge of allegiance. 
 
E. ANNOUNCEMENTS/EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

Commissioner Goodhue requested that the landscape for the City’s Scenic Beach 
Bathrooms be placed on the agenda for the December 10th Planning Commission meeting. 
Mr. Mullane addressed question from the Commission for the Ocean Ave. median lighting 
experiment and noted that it should start Friday November 14th and last from 7-10 days.   

  

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

1 
6



 
F. APPEARANCES 
 

Chair Reimers opened the meeting to public comment. 
 
Speaker 1: Barbra Livingston, resident, noted that Rob Mullane, Director of Community 
Planning and Building, will be speaking at the Carmel Residents Association’s November 
meeting on the 20th at 5:00 p.m.  
 

G. CONSENT AGENDA 
  

Items placed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and are acted upon by the 
Commission in one motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Commission 
action unless a member of the Commission, staff, or public requests specific items be 
discussed and removed from the Consent Agenda.  It is understood that the staff 
recommends approval of all consent items.  Each item on the Consent Agenda approved by 
the Commission shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as 
recommended. 

  
1. Consideration of minutes from October 8, 2014 Regular Meeting.  

 
Rob Mullane, Community Planning and Building Director, noted that staff was not able 
to prepare the draft minutes from the October 8, 2014 meeting in advance of this 
November meeting but will have those minutes for review at a subsequent meeting, 
likely at the December 10th meeting. 

 
         2.   DS 14-17 (Debus) 

      Laura Debus 
      Monte Verde 2 SW of 9th Ave   
      Blk: D, Lot: 3 
      APN: 010-186-017 

 

Consideration of Final Design Study (DS 14-17) 
and associated Coastal Development Permit 
application for the addition of a second story to 
an existing residence located in the Single-
Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District    

Chair Reimers noted that she will be recusing herself from voting on Item G.2 because she 
owns property within 500 feet of the subject property.   

  
Chair Reimers opened the meeting to public comment, and asked if any member of the 
public wished to speak or pull any items. Seeing no other public speakers or requests to pull 
any items, Chair Reimers closed the public comment. 
 
Vice Chair LePage moved to accept DS 14-17. Motion seconded by Commissioner 
Paterson and carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, MARTIN,  
  & GOODHUE  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

2 
7



ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: REIMERS  
 

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. DR 14-27 (Piccadilly Park) 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
Dolores 2 SW of Ocean Ave 
Blk: 75, Lot: 11 

             APN: 010-147-019 

Consideration of a Design Review (DR 14-27) 
application for new landscaping in Piccadilly Park 
which is located in the Central Commercial (CC) 
Zoning District  

 
Chair Reimers recused herself from this item.   
 
Christy Sabdo presented the staff report, which included a brief explanation on the Garden 
Club donating the labor and materials for the proposed park improvements.  Mr. Mullane 
noted that this is a City-owned property, and the City is a co-applicant in this project.  As 
such the Commission may comment on the application, but that staff would need to evaluate 
the financial impact of any requested revisions.  

 
Vice Chair LePage opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker 1: Hallie Mitchell Dow, Carmel-by-the-Sea Garden Club representative and 
applicant, provided an overview of the project.  
 
Speaker 2: Barbra Livingston, had concerns with the design looking too commercial and 
requested that the proposed ginkgo tree in the City right-of-way be replaced with a upper 
canopy tree instead. 
 
Speaker 3: Marion Weaver, project landscape architect, spoke on the planter design for the 
sitting wall. 

 
Seeing no other speakers, Vice Chair LePage closed the public hearing.  
 
The Commission thanked the Garden Club for their service for the City.   
 
Commissioner Goodhue moved to accept the design review with the special condition 
to repoint the grout joints on the patio. Motion seconded by Commissioner Paterson 
and carried unanimously on a 4-0-1 vote as follows:  
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, MARTIN,  
 GOODHUE  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: REIMERS 
 
Chair Reimers returned to the dais and announced that Item H.3: DS 14-21 had been 
continued to the December 10, 2014 meeting at the request of the applicant. 

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

3 
8



 
2. SI 14-42 (Carmel Public Library 

Foundation)     
Southwest side of Rio Road at Ladera 
Drive  
Block: U.S., Lot: 39 

            APN: 009-530-004 

Consideration of a Temporary Sign Permit (SI 14-
42) for the Carmel Public Library Foundation in the 
Park Overlay (P) Zoning District 

 
Mr. Mullane presented the staff report, which included an overview of the proposed project 
and the permit history of previous users of the Larson Field fence. 
 
Chair Reimers opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker 1: Amy Donohue, Executive Director of the Carmel Public Library Foundation and 
applicant, went over the history of the project and fielded questions from the Commission.  
She noted that they would like the banner to be displayed until December 15, 2014. 
 
Chair Reimers announced a disclaimer that her husband was President of the Carmel 
Library Association and is now President of the Board of Trustees for the Carmel Library 
Association. 
 
Speaker 2: Barbra Livingston, resident, asked for clarity on process to use the Larson Field 
fence and asked that policy allow Larson Field banners to be handled at Staff level.  She 
also suggested limiting display to City-specific fundraising efforts only. 
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Reimers closed the public hearing.  
 
Mr. Mullane noted that he has encouraged the Carmel Mission representatives to compile 
and submit for City staff review a proposed program to continue to allow the display of 
banners on the Larsen Field fence. 

 
Commissioner LePage moved to approve the project. Motion seconded by 
Commissioner Paterson and carried unanimously.  
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, MARTIN,  
 GOODHUE & REIMERS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
      3.   DS 14-21 (Gordon) 
            Kathleen Gordon 
            NE Corner of Dolores and 2nd Ave. 
            Blk: 10, Lots: west ½ of Lots 18 & 20 
            APN: 010-126-021 

Consideration of Final Design Study (DS 14-21) and 
associated Coastal Development Permit application 
for the construction of a new residence located in the 
Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District    

 

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

4 
9



Item H.3 was continued to the December 10th 2014 meeting at the request of the applicant. 
 

   4.   DS 14-72 (Levett) 
Dennis Levett 
Monte Verde 3 NE of 4th        
Blk: 32, Lot: 16  
APN:  010-222-007 

Consideration of Final Design Study (DS 14-72) and 
associated Coastal Development Permit application 
for the construction of a new residence located in the 
Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District    

 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner, presented the staff report, noting the revisions to the project 
since it was last reviewed by the Commission.  
 
Chair Reimers opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker 1: John Mandurrago, applicant, addressed questions from the Commission in 
regards to the 2nd story not being able to be shifted, story poles not being revised, and the 
inability to build on a slope without a Use Permit. 
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Reimers closed the public hearing. 
 
The Commission suggested that more separation from the house to the north may be 
beneficial.  The Commission requested that staff require applicants to revise their story 
poles and noted that this should not be an optional task. 
 
Vice Chair LePage moved to accept the application with an added special Condition to 
not plant a cypress tree at the north side of property and to work with staff to plant a 
different tree species 6-8’ tall.  Motion seconded by Commissioner Paterson and passed 
by the following vote:  
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, MARTIN,  
 & GOODHUE 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: REIMERS 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

5.   DS 14-43 (Jarve) 
      John and Jacque Jarve 

Scenic Road 1 SE of 9th Ave 
Blk: A-2, Lots: portions of Lots 2 & 3 
APN: 010-302-015 

 

Consideration of Final Design Study (DS 14-43) and 
associated Coastal Development Permit application 
for the construction of a new residence located in the 
Single-Family Residential (R-1), Park Overlay (P), 
and Beach and Riparian (BR) Overlay Zoning 
Districts 

 
Mr. Wiener presented the staff report, noting the revisions to the project since it was last 
reviewed by the Commission.  He noted the shades and the applicant passed four samples 
around the dias.   
 

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

5 
10



Speaker 1: Eric Miller, project architect, went over the project.  He provided clarifications 
on the proposed switch-glass system, copper roof, transim window, and fielded questions 
from the Commission on the proposed design. 

 
Speaker 2: Dr. Steven Beutler, resident and neighbor, noted his opposition to the project 
because of the high volume of construction and related noise in the area of the project over 
the last few years.  He recommended a delay on approving the project.  He also requested 
the City include more stringent noise mitigation and impose a time limit for the construction 
phase of approved projects. 
 
Speaker 3: Barbara Livingston, resident, noted her support for time limits on construction 
properties and recommended that the applicant plant a Cypress tree on the west side of the 
property. 

 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Reimers closed the public hearing. 

 
Vice Chair LePage moved to accept the application with shade option #1 or #3 and an 
additional Special Conditions that construction only be allowed from Monday-Friday 8 
a.m. to 5 p.m. with no work on holidays permitted and that any change to glass need to 
be approved by the Planning Commission.  Motion seconded by Commissioner 
Goodhue and carried by the following vote:  
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, MARTIN & 
 GOODHUE  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: REIMERS 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

   6.   DS 14-64 (Webster) 
         Martha Webster 
         Camino Real 2 NW of 11th Ave        
         Blk: Q, Lot: 17  
         APN: 010-275-008 
 

Consideration of Final Design Study (DS 14-64) and 
associated Coastal Development Permit application 
for the substantial alteration of an existing residence 
located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) 
Zoning District    

 
Mr. Wiener presented the staff report noting the revisions to the project since it was last 
reviewed by the Commission.   

 
Chair Reimers opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker 1: Eric Miller, project architect, went over the project.  He presented clarifications 
on the proposed existing story poles, the revisions made to the north elevation, and proposed 
steel windows. 

 
Speaker 2: James Jungroth, neighbor to the north, noted concerns with the project’s current 
story poles and proposed an alternative plan for the second story addition.  He distributed a 

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

6 
11



depiction of this alternative plan to the Commission.  Mr. Jungroth also pointed out issues 
with the installation of netting. 
 
Speaker 1: Eric Miller, project architect, returned to the podium and stated that the current 
netting was correctly installed. 
 
Speaker 3: Martha Webster, applicant, spoke in support of the project and noted that she 
made several attempts to work with the neighbors to achieve an acceptable compromise. 
 
Speaker 4: Barbra Livingston, had a question on the proposed window design. 
 
Speaker 3: Martha Webster, returned to the podium and provided clarity on the window 
design. 
 
Speaker 1: Eric Miller, returned to the podium and fielded questions from the Commission 
on design impacts to the neighbor to the north and the need to trim the existing tree. 
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Reimers closed the public hearing. The Commission 
discussed the project and options for reducing impacts for the neighbor to the north.   
 
Mr. Mullane addressed the netting and ribbing instructions and noted that not everyone uses 
2-ft wide netting.  He also showed the Commission a handout with story pole instructions 
that staff distributes to the applicant.  
 
The Commission had a brief discussion on netting and recommended that staff require the 2-
ft width of netting to be used. 
 
Commissioner Goodhue moved to accept the application with elimination of the second 
floor bay window element.  Motion seconded by Commissioner Paterson and carried 
unanimously.  
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, MARTIN,  
 GOODHUE & REIMERS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

   7.   DS 14-96 (Domicile Capital) 
         Domicile Capital, LLC 
         9th Ave. 2 NE of Monte Verde 
         Blk: 94, Lots: west ½ of Lots 17 & 19 

            APN: 010-193-008 

Consideration of Concept Design Study (DS 14-96) 
and associated Coastal Development Permit 
application for the substantial alteration of an 
existing residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) Zoning District    

 
Mr. Wiener presented the staff report, which included an overview of the proposed project, a 
discussion of the addition, the crawl space being unlivable, and the sidewalk at front of 
property be maintained as asphalt instead of pavers. 

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

7 
12



 
Mr. Mullane noted there was a typo in the staff report and that the correct application 
number is DS 14-96 and not DS 14-92. 
 
Chair Reimers opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker 1: Jerry Case, project designer, went over the project and the applicant’s preference 
to not have to adjust the ceiling height for the crawl space.  He noted preference for a deed 
restriction rather than a structural change.   

 
Speaker 2: Barbra Livingston, resident, states she favors the floor being lowered or ceiling 
raised and is not in support of deed restriction because of the difficulty in monitoring such 
deed restrictions. 
 
Speaker 3: Pat Corrigan, applicant, spoke in support of a deed restriction.   

 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Reimers closed the public hearing.  The Commission 
discussed the project, the impacts of the existing crawl space and its proposed and 
alternative design.  The Commission discussed Municipal Code Section 17.10.030.D and 
the Zoning Code’s definition of floor area.  Concerns with the tree removal were also 
discussed. 
 
Commissioner LePage requested that the Commission have the preliminary site assessment 
information and any applicable tree report included with the staff report in future agenda 
packets. 
 
Vice Chair LePage moved to accept the application with recommendations to staff to 
include the site assessment of the tree report in next agenda packet and for applicant 
to remove the ivy. Motion seconded by Commissioner Martin and carried by the 
following vote:  
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, MARTIN,  
 GOODHUE & REIMERS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: PATERSON 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

8.   DR 14-30/UP 14-18  (Carmel Coffee 
and Cocoa Bar) 

      Mathew Porgess 
      SE Corner of Ocean and Mission     
      (Carmel Plaza – Spaces 121 & 122) 
      Blk: 78, Lots: All 
      APN:  010-086-006 

Consideration of Design Review (DR 14-18) and 
Use Permit (UP 14-30) applications for exterior 
alterations and the expansion of an existing 
restaurant  located in the Central Commercial (CC) 
Zoning District (Carmel Coffee and Cocoa Bar) 
 

 

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

8 
13



Chair Reimers recused herself, because she owns property within 500 feet of the subject 
property. 
 
Mr. Wiener presented the staff report, which included an overview of the proposed project 
and the Use Permit.   
 
Vice Chair LePage opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker 1: Matthew Porgess, project designer/business owner, went over the project.   
 
Speaker 2: Mira Porgess, co-owner, clarified the process they used in selecting the proposed 
color palette.  
 
Seeing no other speakers, Vice Chair LePage closed the public hearing.   
 
Vice Chair LePage reopened the public hearing so that the applicants could address 
questions on the color of an exterior support post.  Mr. Porges noted that he will have to 
speak to the Plaza because the post is outside of his lease space and its color is not in his 
control.  He noted that the Carmel Plaza has their own approved color palette. 

 
Seeing no other speakers, Vice Chair LePage closed the public hearing.   

 
Commissioner Goodhue moved to approve the concept with the revision to Special 
Condition 19 to reflect wood windows, as recommended by staff.  Motion seconded by 
Commissioner Paterson and carried on the following vote:  
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, MARTIN & 
 GOODHUE  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: REIMERS 
 

I. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Update from the Director 
 

Mr. Mullane provided an update on recent City Council and Department issues of interest to 
the Commission.  He noted the recent addition of two new contract staff: Howard Bell, who 
will be helping out the Building Safety Division, and Ashley Hobson, contract planner with 
PMC.  He briefly went over their qualifications and roles.  
 
Mr. Mullane also noted that the recruitment of a new full-time Assistant or Associate 
Planner was on-going, and that interviews were scheduled for this Friday.   
  

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

9 
14



Mr. Mullane noted that the code compliance case load remains very heavy and that 
additional staff may be needed and may be considered by the City Council in upcoming 
budget discussions. 
 
He stated that the Department’s office remodeling work was still coming along and that the 
office has a more professional look as a result of these efforts. 
 
He provided some highlights of the November City Council meeting, including the report 
from City Administrator Doug Schmitz and City Attorney Don Freeman on workload and 
personnel issues, as well as other actions and discussions regarding the farmers market. 
 
Mr. Mullane reported on the median lighting experiment and the efforts of community 
volunteers Jim Griffiths and Meredith Noel.  A follow-up public workshop on the median 
light options is tentatively planned for December 8th. 
 
Mr. Mullane also noted that he should have for the next meeting a review of the Planning 
Commission Rules of Procedure with respect to the election of the Chair and Vice Chair.  

 
J. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  

1. Report from Sub-Committees 
 
Wine tasting sub committee schedule a workshop 2nd week of dec. 
 
Revised policy by marc will be reviewed by winetasting sub committee. 
 
Chair Reimers announced that there will be a public workshop conducted by the Median 
Lighting Subcommittee on Tuesday, September 16th at 5:00 pm.   
 
Vice Chair Paterson noted that the Wine Tasting Subcommittee would be scheduling an 
internal planning meeting later in September and anticipates a public workshop in late 
October. 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business Chair Reimers adjourned the meeting at 7:48 p.m.  
 

The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be: 
 

Wednesday, December 10, 2014, at 4:00 p.m.  
 

  

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

10 
15



 SIGNED:  
 

 
 

___________________________________ 
 Janet Reimers, Planning Commission Chair 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Roxanne Ellis 

Acting Planning Commission Secretary  
 
 

Planning Commission Minutes 
November 12, 2014 

11 
16



17



18



19



Attachment A - Examples of Cigarette Receptacles 

 
Option: Teak Ash Urn 
 

 
 
Option: Buttler Ash Receptacles 
 
 

 
 
 

20



Attachment A - Examples of Cigarette Receptacles 

Option: Smokers Outpost 
 

 
 
 
 

21



Attachment B - Map of Possible Locations 
 
 

 

Legend: 
Red dots: Phase 1 Possible Locations 
Blue dots: Phase 2 Possible Locations 

22



Attachment C

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



Attachment B – Site Photographs  

 

Restroom Facility – Facing northeast  

30



 

Restroom Facility – Facing south 

 

Back of Restroom  – Facing north  

31



(E) BENCH

(N)
TRSH/
RECY.

(E) CLEAN
UP AREA

(E) 10"
Cyp.

(N)
DRINKING
FOUNTAIN

(E) 18"
Cyp.

(E) Dead
Cyp.

(E) 12" Cyp.

(E) 4"
Tree

(E) 6"
Cyp.

(E) 6" Cypress

(E) Shrub

(E) 40" Cypress

ROOF GARDEN
UNDER

SEPARATE
CONTRACT(E) 2"

Tree

(E) PATH TO
 BEACH

(N) MH

(N)
RESTROOMS

(E
) D

.G
. P

ATH

(E
) D

.G
. P

AT
H

(E) BENCH

(27) Iris douglasiana
Douglas Iris, 1 gal.

(10) Eschscholzia californica
California Poppy, 4" pot

SCENIC     
 ROAD

(4) Erigeron glaucus, Seaside Daisy, 1 gal.

(9) Baccharis pilularis 'Pigeon Point'
Dwarf Coyote Bush, 1 gal.

(29) Eschscholzia californica, California Poppy, 4" pot

(3) Erigeron glaucus, Seaside Daisy, 1 gal.

(7) Iris douglasiana, Pacific Coast Iris, 1 gal.

(E) CEANOTHUS
ON BANK

(E) SHRUBS
TO REMAIN

(E) CONC. WALK

(10) Arctostaphylos edmundii
Carmel Sur Manzanita, 1 gal.

(10) Arctostaphylos edmundii, Carmel Sur Manzanita, 1 gal.

(17) Arctostaphylos edmundii Sur Manzanita, 1 gal.

(3) Ceanothus 'Heaven's Breath',
     Heaven's Breath Wild Lilac, 1 gal.

(E) NEW
ZEALAND
SPINACH

TO REMAIN

(E) HILLSIDE
PLANTINGS
TO REMAIN

(E) 10"
Cyp.

(5) Erigeron glaucus, Seaside Daisy, 4" pot.

(3) Epilobium canum, California Fuchsia, 1 gal.

(5) Sidalcea malveflora, Checkerbloom, 4" pot.

(16) Sisyrinchium bellum 'Rocky Point'
Blue-eyed Grass, 4" pot.

(3) Ceanothus gloriosus 'Heart's Desire'
Heart's Desire Ceanothus, 1 gal.

(10) Sisyrinchium bellum 'Rocky Point', Blue-eyed Grass, 4" pot.

(6) Dudleya caespitosa, Sea Lettuce, 4" pot.

(16) Eschscholzia californica, California Poppy, 4" pot

(11) Iris douglasiana, Pacific Coast Iris, 1 gal.

(2) Epilobium canum, California Fuchsia, 1 gal.

(12) Ceanothus gloriosus 'Heart's Desire', Heart's Desire Ceanothus, 1 gal.

(9) Sidalcea malveflora, Checkerbloom, 4" pot.

(14) Lavandula angustifolia , English Lavender, 1 gal.

(2) Cistus skabergii, White Hybrid Rockrose, 1 gal.

(3) Arctostaphylos edmundii Sur Manzanita, 1 gal.

(7) Ceanothus gloriosus 'Heart's Desire'
Heart's Desire Ceanothus, 1 gal.

(11) Eschscholzia californica,
California Poppy, 4" pot

(10) Iris douglasiana, Pacific Coast Iris, 1 gal.

(3) Erigeron glaucus, Seaside Daisy, 4" pot.

(1) Epilobium canum, California Fuchsia, 1 gal.

(3) Euchera maxima
Wood Alum, 4" pot

(3) Cistus skabergii,
White Hybrid Rockrose, 1 gal.

(14) Ceanothus gloriosus 'Heart's Desire'
Heart's Desire Ceanothus, 1 gal.

(1) Epilobium canum,
California Fuchsia, 1 gal.

(16) Euchera maxima
Wood Alum, 4" pot

(1) Epilobium canum,
California Fuchsia, 1 gal.

(13) Limonium perezii
Sea Lavender, 1 gal.

(15) Ceanothus gloriosus 'Heart's Desire'
Heart's Desire Ceanothus, 1 gal.

(15) Danthonia californica, California Oatgrass, 4" pot.

(6) Cistus skabergii,
White Hybrid Rockrose, 1 gal.

(N) GRANITE STONE
SWALE 24" - 30" WIDE
W/ IRIS PLANTED
NEXT TO BUILDING

(9) Erigeron glaucus, Seaside Daisy, 1 gal. 5

5

5

5

5

5

5

PLANT LIST

Cistus skabergii

Erigeron glauca

Lavandula angustifolia

SYMBOL

White Hybrid Rockrose 1 gal.

Seaside Daisy 4" Pot 26

English Lavender 1 gal. 14

Ceanothus gloriosus
'Heart's Desire'  

Heart's Desire Ceanothus 1 gal. 51

Danthonia californica California Oatgrass 4" Pot 15

Limonium perezii Sea Lavender 4" Pot 13

Arctostaphylos edmundii
'Carmel Sur'

Carmel Sur Manzanita 5 gal 40

Eschscholzia californica
var. maritima

California Poppy 4" Pot 66

Sidalcea malveflora Checkerbloom 4" Pot 21

Dudleya caespitosa Sea Luttuce 4" Pot 6A

Baccharis pilularis '
Pigeon Point'

Dwarf Coyote Bush 5 gal. 9

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE QUANT.

SHRUBS

FORBS AND GRASSES

TYPE

Sisyrinchium bellum 'Rocky Point' Blue-eyed Grass 4" Pot 26

18

Iris douglasiana Pacific Coast Iris 4" Pot 53

Epilobium  canum 'Bert's Bluff' Bert's Bluff California
Fuschia

1 gal. 8

A
A

A

A

L

L
L

L

L
L

L
L L

L

A

A

Heuchera maxima Island Alum Root 4" Pot 18

H

H

H

H

H

H

H

H
H

HH
H

H H

H

H

H

H

L
L

L

H

H

L L

C

C
C

C Ceanothus gloriosus
'Heaven's Breath'  

Heaven's Breath Ceanothus 1 gal. 3

Job:

ARCHITECTURAL

Drawn By:

Scale:

REVISION   #

U
se

 o
f t

he
se

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 s
ha

ll 
be

 re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 s
ite

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
th

er
eo

f i
s 

ex
pr

es
sl

y 
lim

ite
d 

to
 s

uc
h 

us
e.

  R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
or

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n 

by
 a

ny
 m

et
ho

d,
 in

 w
ho

le
 o

r i
n 

pa
rt,

 is
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d.
  T

itl
e 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 re
m

ai
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

 w
ith

ou
t p

re
ju

di
ce

.  
Vi

su
al

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 th
es

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 s
ha

ll 
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

pr
im

a 
fa

ci
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
of

 th
es

e 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

.

ROBERT
McDOWELL

CARVER

C -18179

REN. 09/30/15

@ 24x36

11/20/2014 10:00:25 AM

As indicated

City of Carmel
Beach

Restrooms
SCENIC RD. AT

SANTA LUCIA AVE
Carmel, CA 93921

LANDSCAPE PLAN

L1.0

MP
0912

CONSTRUCTION
SET

February 25, 2014

LANDSCAPE PLAN

   N.T.S
N.T.S

3 6-27-2014 Drawing
revisions

4 11-3-14 Landscp.
Morganroth
Commts.

5 11-20-14 Morganroth
Comments 2

NORTH

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



Attachment A – Site Photographs 

Project Site – Facing east on Torres Street 

 

 

124



Attachment B – Proposed composition shingles (color: Weathered Wood) 

 

 

Weathered Wood 

125



126



127



128

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A - Site Photographs



129



130

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Correspondence from Applicant and Roofing Brochure



131

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Correspondence from Applicant and Roofing Brochure



132



133



134



135



Attachment A – Site Photographs  

 

Project site (Street Elevation) – Facing east from Forest Road 

 

Project Site (Front Elevation) 

136



 

Project Site – Rear (North) Elevation 

 

Project Site (Street Elevation) – Looking North from Seventh Avenue 

137



Attachment B – Findings for Concept Acceptance 
 
DS 14-114 (OSBT) 
December 10, 2014 
Concept Findings  
Page 1 
 

FINDINGS REQUIRED FOR CONCEPT DESIGN STUDY ACCEPTANCE (CMC 17.64.8 and LUP Policy 
P1-45) 

For each of the required design study findings listed below, staff has indicated whether the 
submitted plans support adoption of the findings.  For all findings checked "no" the staff report 
discusses the issues to facilitate the Planning Commission decision-making.  Findings checked 
"yes" may or may not be discussed in the report depending on the issues. 

Municipal Code Finding YES NO 

1.  The project conforms with all zoning standards applicable to the site, or has 
received appropriate use permits and/or variances consistent with the zoning 
ordinance. 

✔  

2.  The project is consistent with the City’s design objectives for protection and 
enhancement of the urbanized forest, open space resources and site design.  The 
project’s use of open space, topography, access, trees and vegetation will maintain 
or establish a continuity of design both on the site and in the public right of way that 
is characteristic of the neighborhood. 

✔  

3.  The project avoids complexity using simple/modest building forms, a simple roof 
plan with a limited number of roof planes and a restrained employment of offsets 
and appendages that are consistent with neighborhood character, yet will not be 
viewed as repetitive or monotonous within the neighborhood context. 

✔  

4.  The project is adapted to human scale in the height of its roof, plate lines, eave 
lines, building forms, and in the size of windows doors and entryways.  The 
development is similar in size, scale, and form to buildings on the immediate block 
and neighborhood.  Its height is compatible with its site and surrounding 
development and will not present excess mass or bulk to the public or to adjoining 
properties.  Mass of the building relates to the context of other homes in the 
vicinity. 

✔  

5.  The project is consistent with the City’s objectives for public and private views 
and will retain a reasonable amount of solar access for neighboring sites.  Through 
the placement, location and size of windows, doors and balconies the design 
respects the rights to reasonable privacy on adjoining sites.   

✔  

6.  The design concept is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies related to 
residential design in the general plan.   

✔  

7.  The development does not require removal of any significant trees unless 
necessary to provide a viable economic use of the property or protect public health 
and safety.  All buildings are setback a minimum of 6 feet from significant trees. 

✔  

8.  The proposed architectural style and detailing are simple and restrained in 
character, consistent and well integrated throughout the building and 
complementary to the neighborhood without appearing monotonous or repetitive 
in context with designs on nearby sites. 

✔  

138



 
DS 14-114 (OSBT) 
December 10, 2014 
Concept Findings 
Page 2 
 
 
9.  The proposed exterior materials and their application rely on natural materials 
and the overall design will add to the variety and diversity along the streetscape. 

✔  

10.  Design elements such as stonework, skylights, windows, doors, chimneys and 
garages are consistent with the adopted Design Guidelines and will complement the 
character of the structure and the neighborhood. 

✔  

11.  Proposed landscaping, paving treatments, fences and walls are carefully 
designed to complement the urbanized forest, the approved site design, adjacent 
sites, and the public right of way.  The design will reinforce a sense of visual 
continuity along the street. 

✔  

12.  Any deviations from the Design Guidelines are considered minor and reasonably 
relate to good design principles and specific site conditions.    

✔  

 
 
COASTAL DEVELOPMENT FINDINGS (CMC 17.64.B.1): 

1.  Local Coastal Program Consistency:  The project conforms with the certified Local 
Coastal Program of the City of Carmel-by-the Sea. 

✔  

2.  Public access policy consistency:  The project is not located between the first 
public road and the sea, and therefore, no review is required for potential public 
access.   

✔  

 

139



Attachment C – Recommendations/Draft Conditions 
 
DS 14-114 (OSBT) 
December 10, 2014 
Recommendations/Draft Conditions 
Page 1 
 

 
 

Recommendations/Draft Conditions of Approval 
No.   
1. The applicant shall submit a landscape plan for final Planning Commission review 

that includes a proposal for one new upper-canopy tree on the site.  The 
landscape plan shall also indicate the removal of all ivy from the property. 

 

2. The applicant shall eliminate the proposed south elevation bay window in order 
to meet the front-yard setback requirement. 

 

3. The applicant shall apply for an encroachment permit for the proposed stairs in 
the City ROW prior to submitting for the Building Permit. 

 

4. The applicant shall revise the fence height along the west property line to 
conform to the City’s street-side setback fence height limit of 4 feet.  

 

 
 
 
 
  

140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



Attachment A – Site Photographs  

 

Project site (Street Elevation) – Facing west on Santa Fe Street 

 

 

156



Attachment B – Findings for Concept Acceptance 
 
DS 14-115 (Churchward) 
December 10, 2014 
Concept Findings  
Page 1 
 

FINDINGS REQUIRED FOR CONCEPT DESIGN STUDY ACCEPTANCE (CMC 17.64.8 and LUP Policy 
P1-45) 

For each of the required design study findings listed below, staff has indicated whether the 
submitted plans support adoption of the findings.  For all findings checked "no" the staff report 
discusses the issues to facilitate the Planning Commission decision-making.  Findings checked 
"yes" may or may not be discussed in the report depending on the issues. 

Municipal Code Finding YES NO 

1.  The project conforms with all zoning standards applicable to the site, or has 
received appropriate use permits and/or variances consistent with the zoning 
ordinance. 

✔  

2.  The project is consistent with the City’s design objectives for protection and 
enhancement of the urbanized forest, open space resources and site design.  The 
project’s use of open space, topography, access, trees and vegetation will maintain 
or establish a continuity of design both on the site and in the public right of way that 
is characteristic of the neighborhood. 

✔  

3.  The project avoids complexity using simple/modest building forms, a simple roof 
plan with a limited number of roof planes and a restrained employment of offsets 
and appendages that are consistent with neighborhood character, yet will not be 
viewed as repetitive or monotonous within the neighborhood context. 

✔  

4.  The project is adapted to human scale in the height of its roof, plate lines, eave 
lines, building forms, and in the size of windows doors and entryways.  The 
development is similar in size, scale, and form to buildings on the immediate block 
and neighborhood.  Its height is compatible with its site and surrounding 
development and will not present excess mass or bulk to the public or to adjoining 
properties.  Mass of the building relates to the context of other homes in the 
vicinity. 

✔  

5.  The project is consistent with the City’s objectives for public and private views 
and will retain a reasonable amount of solar access for neighboring sites.  Through 
the placement, location and size of windows, doors and balconies the design 
respects the rights to reasonable privacy on adjoining sites.   

✔  

6.  The design concept is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies related to 
residential design in the general plan.   

✔  

7.  The development does not require removal of any significant trees unless 
necessary to provide a viable economic use of the property or protect public health 
and safety.  All buildings are setback a minimum of 6 feet from significant trees. 

✔  

8.  The proposed architectural style and detailing are simple and restrained in 
character, consistent and well integrated throughout the building and 
complementary to the neighborhood without appearing monotonous or repetitive 
in context with designs on nearby sites. 

✔  

157



 
DS 14-115 (Churchward) 
December 10, 2014 
Concept Findings 
Page 2 
 
 
9.  The proposed exterior materials and their application rely on natural materials 
and the overall design will add to the variety and diversity along the streetscape. 

✔  

10.  Design elements such as stonework, skylights, windows, doors, chimneys and 
garages are consistent with the adopted Design Guidelines and will complement the 
character of the structure and the neighborhood. 

✔  

11.  Proposed landscaping, paving treatments, fences and walls are carefully 
designed to complement the urbanized forest, the approved site design, adjacent 
sites, and the public right of way.  The design will reinforce a sense of visual 
continuity along the street. 

✔  

12.  Any deviations from the Design Guidelines are considered minor and reasonably 
relate to good design principles and specific site conditions.    

✔  

 
 
COASTAL DEVELOPMENT FINDINGS (CMC 17.64.B.1): 

1.  Local Coastal Program Consistency:  The project conforms with the certified Local 
Coastal Program of the City of Carmel-by-the Sea. 

✔  

2.  Public access policy consistency:  The project is not located between the first 
public road and the sea, and therefore, no review is required for potential public 
access.   

✔  

 
 
 

158



Attachment C – Recommendations/Draft Conditions 
 
DS 14-115 (Churwardr) 
December 10, 2014 
Recommendations/Draft Conditions 
Page 1 
 

 
 

Recommendations/Draft Conditions 
No.   
1. The applicant shall provide a landscape plan for Final Planning Commission 

review that includes a provision for one new upper-canopy tree. 
 

2. The applicant shall work with staff on removing additional site coverage by an 
amount specified by the Planning Commission at the December 10, 2014 
meeting.  A revised site coverage reduction plan shall be submitted for Final 
Planning Commission review.    

 

3. The fence and stepping stone encroachments at the front of the property shall be 
noted on revised plans submitted for Final Planning Commission review and on 
the construction plan set submitted with the Building Permit application.  These 
revised plans shall note that these are to be removed.  The encroachments shall 
be removed prior to final planning inspection. 

 

 
 
 
 
  

159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189


	PC Agenda - 121014
	G1 - PC minutes 100814
	G2 - PC Minutes 111214
	H1 - Cig Receptacles
	H2 - Scenic Restroom
	H3 - Shannon
	H4 - Pedersen
	H5 - Levett
	H6 - OSBT Lehman
	H7 - Churchward
	H8 - Hoffman



